UNTED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

TEACHERS4ACTION,
On behalf of its Members
And By Florian Lewenstein,
Its Treasurer and Spokesperson, :
JOHN DOE & JANE DOE TEACHERS 1 -50- : CIVIL ACTND

PLAINTIFFS

- VS -
MICHAEL G. BLOOMBERG,
JOEL KLEIN,
NEW YORK CITY :

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, : COMPLAINT
SUPERINTENDENTS 1 - 10; and : (JURY TRIAEMANDED)
PRINCIPALS 1 - 10;

DEFENDANTS

INTRODUCTION

Upon information and belief, Plaintiffs’ allegation® dhat from 2000 until today, the
New York City Board of Education has implemented a sghthat discriminates against its
most qualified teachers. The goal is to reduce salariésrting teachers to quit or be fired.
This goal is accomplished through “Temporary Reassignmemte@s” (known as “Rubber
Rooms”) to which the “targeted” teachers are sent. pld involves Principals notifying
“targeted” teachers that they are removed from classgsped of teaching responsibilities and
reassigned to a Rubber Room, where they wait untth@yges are brought or they are coerced
into accepting deals that include fines and can leackiotérminations. Currently almost 1,000
teachers languish in Rubber Rooms in violation of tthe& process rights and the chance to
clear their names and be restored to their classroofh& Rubber Rooms constitute racist and

discriminatory policies, are the functional equivalehimodern day “internment camps” where



“targeted” teachers are banished for months, or evas Jeefore they can fight unfounded
charges. The Rubber Rooms undermine sound education palcieteprive students of
gualified competent teachers. The Rubbers Rooms adasti fraudulent plan, scheme and/or
enterprise through which these Defendants came togettemget a particular group of teachers
in violation of, Federal laws, including among others,3hand 14’ Amendments, 42 U.S.C. §
2000 e (“Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964”), 29 UG. § 621 (“Age Discrimination in
Employment Act of 1967"), 42 U.S.C. § 1981 (“Civil Rights Actl®91"), 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1962 et
seq. (“The RICO Statute”), 18 U.S.C. § 1341 (“Wire Fraudij 48 USC 1343 (“Mail Fraud”),
relevant New York State laws including New York Cordatied Law, Chap. 40, Part Three,
Title K, Art. 190 (“Schemes to Defraud”), New York Condated Law, Chap. 40, Part Four,
Title X, Art. 460 (“Enterprise Corruption”), as well & and Federal laws related to misuse of
public funds.

COMPLAINT

JURISDICTION

1) The Court has original jurisdiction over Plaintiffsachs based upon alleged violations of
the 8" and 14' Amendments, 42 U.S.C. § 2000 e (“Title VII of the CivigRts Act of
19647), 29 U.S.C. § 621 (Age Discrimination in Employment éic1967), 42 U.S.C. § 1981
(“Civil Rights Act of 1991”), 18 U.S.C. § 1962 et seq. (“TRECO Statute”), 18 U.S.C. §
1341 (“Wire Fraud”) and 18 USC 1343 (“Mail Fraud”) and Federal lalged to misuse of
public funds.

2) The Court has ancillary and/or supplemental jurisdiabioall Plaintiffs” state law claims
pursuant to 28 USC § 1367.

3) Each of the claims of the named Plaintiffs excebdsstatutory limit of this Court, exclusive

of attorneys’ fees, costs and interest.
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VENUE
4) Venue is proper in this Court because one or more d?lthetiffs live in this judicial
district, and one of more of the Defendants live andfobusiness in this district, and/or the

Defendants’ unlawful acts occurred within this judiciadtdct.

PARTIES

Plaintiffs

5) Plaintiff Teachers4Actiohis an unincorporated association pursuant to Gen. Asieociat
Laws Art. 3.

6) Plaintiff Florian Lewenstein is the Treasurer and Spp&eson of Plaintiff Teachers4Action
and is authorized and has standing to commence and progesuaetion, individually and
on behalf of Plaintiff Teachers4Action.

7) Plaintiffs John Does and Jane Does 1 -*H08 teachers who fall into certain categories,
including but not limited to (i) teachers who are prelgestassigned to Rubber Rooms; (ii)
teachers in the midst of the administrative discippnecess and against whom false charges
have been brought; (ii) teachers who were forcedskath intimidated and/or coerced to
accept onerous or unfair deals, (ii) teachers who slafésrof property, loss of pay and other
monetary losses; (iii) teachers who suffer physicamotional injuries from being forced
into Rubber Rooms; (iv) teachers who cannot get other gotas(v) teachers who are

otherwise being targeted and victimized as part of the fsl®me and enterprise.

! Teachers4Action™® are in the process of obtaining foapgroval by the New York State
Department of Education as a Not-For-Profit Corporaéind is seeking similar status under the
IRS Code Section 501(c ) (3).

2 The names John Doe and Jane Doe are being used taim#ie teachers’ identities because
the teachers are fearful of further retaliation.



Defendants

8) Defendant Michael G. Bloomberg (“Bloomberg”) is the Mapf New York City and in that
capacity has direct control over the New York City RuScthools.

9) Defendant Joel Klein (“Klein”) is the Chancellor betNew York City Department of
Education and together with Bloomberg has control oveN#w York City Public Schools.

10)Defendant New York City Department of Education (“DOE Pilaintiffs’ employer.

11)Superintendents 1 — 10 are persons who were involved weittatfeting of teachers and the
fraud, scheme and enterprise as noted below.

12)Principals 1 — 10 are persons who had direct contactRiatihtiffs in the schools to which
they were assigned before they were targeted indhe fischeme and enterprise as noted
below.

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

13)Starting in or about 2002, the office of the Mayor @WNYork City assumed direct control
over the New York City Public Schools.

14)In or about 2003, the DOE was completely reorganized wuatdrol of the Office of the
Mayor.

15)Since 2000, the DOE has systematically implemented andaaut a plan that
discriminates against Plaintiffs’ members, who are ggribe most qualified teachers in
NYC and perhaps in the country.

16)The plan and scheme called for the Superintendents amdp@fs to help Bloomberg, Klein
and the DOE reduce the budget for the various districtsemools.

17)The plan and scheme called for Plaintiff TeachersibAanembers, and other teachers that

fit a certain criteria, to be targeted for discriminatibarassment and intimidation.



18) This would be accomplished by the “targeted” teachers laiogsed of certain false
charges, including but not limited to their (i) allegedlynigeinsubordinate, (ii) their work
allegedly being substandard, (iii) their allegedly being majisi or emotionally abusive to
students or (iv) any other allegedly improper conduct.

19)Once accused of the false charges the “targeted” teagbezgo be immediately “re-
assigned” to “Temporary Reassignment Centers” (morevaonrty known as “Rubber
Rooms”).

20)The targeted teacher would be banished to the Rubber Roigmsityust cause and without
due process.

21)The “targeted” teachers are/were (i) removed fronsels(ii) stripped of teaching
responsibilities and (iii) reassigned to a Rubber Room.

22)The “targeted” teachers are/were (i) those who weee a certain minimum age, (ii) those
who had achieved a high pay and benefits level and whodeaddmployees of the DOE for
more than a dozen years, (iii) those who dared tbecigge and/or question DOE practices
and / or the “Rubber Room” procedures, (iv) whistle blenaard (v) those who dated to
demand their rights, including seniority transfers andl@ process rights.

23)The “targeted” teachers are/were forced to wait irRtkber Rooms without due process
and the chance to clear their names and be restotieeit@lassrooms.

24)Another goal of the Rubber Room process is to coerrash, intimidate and terrorize the
“targeted” teachers so that they will be fearful fogit personal and professional well-being
and will then retire or resign or be “forced” to acceeals involving ruinous fines or

termination.

% The Rubber Rooms are in part the result of agreemeats tetween Plaintiffs’ union, the
United Federation of Teachers and Defendants Bloombéea &nd the DOE; however the
implementation of the Rubber Room practices and concemtisecriminatory and violate the
targeted teachers rights.



25)0Once in the Rubber Rooms, the “targeted” teacherfoered to wait until charges are
brought, or until they agree to deals that lead to fings,aper charges and/or records placed
in their permanent files and can also include terminatio

26)The Rubber Room practice involves knowing, intentioreeless, reckless, negligent and/or
otherwise improper waste and abuse of public funds.

27)The Rubber Room and the practice of targeting teachelssasibed above, is/was part of
the fraud, scheme and plan to harass and discriminatesgartain teachers, hereinafter
referred to as “The Fraudulent Scheme”.

28)At all times relevant hereto, Defendants Bloombergkdeth, and/or persons acting in their
name and with their authority, were ultimately resjidador the approval of The Fraudulent
Scheme.

29)At all times relevant hereto, Defendant DOE and fiisials and/or representatives, were
charged with the implementation of The Fraudulent Scheme

30)At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Superintendeats responsible to Defendants
Bloomberg, Klein and the DOE to insure that The Fraud8eheme was carried out as per
the instructions of Defendants Bloomberg, Klein and DOE.

31)At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Principalsenresponsible to Defendant
Superintendents that The Fraudulent Scheme was cartied per the instructions of
Defendants Bloomberg, Klein and DOE.

32)At all times relevant hereto, and to insure that Tlauéulent Scheme was carried out
according to the instructions of Defendants Bloomberginkdad DOE, the Defendants
caused certain written handbooks and/or manuals tcelagecr and distributed which

Defendants Superintendents and Principals weredoired and/or directed to follow.



33)At all times relevant hereto, the aforesaid writh@mdbooks and/or manuals were mailed
and/or electronically delivered to Defendants Superintesderd Principals as part of The
Fraudulent Scheme.

34)At all times relevant hereto, in addition to the a&aid written handbooks and/or manuals
Defendants Bloomberg, Klein and DOE caused additionalipsland/or guidelines to be
created and distributed to Defendants Superintendents amtpRIsnwvhich they were in turn
required and/or directed to follow as part of The Fraudi@eheme.

35)As of early 2000, there were approximately 300 teachers repoaecused of “misconduct”
and/or “incompetence” who were banished to “Rubber Ro@sigart of The Fraudulent
SchemeSee Exhibit 1 — NY Times Article dated March 1, 2000.

36)As teachers’ years of employment, experience and temenesased so too was the need to
banish more and more teachers to the Rubber Rooms vatici was accomplished by an
increasing number of teachers accused of “misconduct” ahdémmpetence” so that they
could be banished to “Rubber Rooms”, as part of The Fraudbitdmtme.

37)Starting in or about 2004, Defendants Bloomberg, KleinthkeadOE, determined that the
number of teachers targeted had to be increased sbelgatduld achieve the goal of the
Fraudulent Scheme, reduce payroll at the expense of gdaidachers by subjecting them to
The Fraudulent Scheme, targeting, harassment, intimrdatoercion and banishment to
Rubber Rooms.

38)Upon information and belief, a “Confidential” revisiamprior manuals was distributed, by
mail and/or electronic transmission, with directibm®efendants Superintendents and
Principals outlining and directing them as to what prastitiey were to follow as part of the

Fraudulent Scheme.



39)Upon information and belief, additional instructions aneéctions were given directly to
Defendants Superintendents and Principals outlining andidygbem as to what practices
they were to follow as part of the Fraudulent Scheme.

40) The additional instructions, directions and policiesetdorth in the “Confidential” manual,
were followed by the Defendants Superintendents and pailscand caused a dramatic
increase in the reports of alleged “misconduct” andfmdmpetence” and new categories
for discipline were included to, such as “insubordinati@tl’pf which was designed to
further the goal of The Fraudulent Scheme.

41)By of mid 2005, there were reportedly over four hundred teachsvshwad been banished to
“Rubber Rooms” as part of The Fraudulent ScherBee Exhibit 2 — National Council of
Teacher Equality Bulletin dated June 8, 2005.

42)By mid 2006, there were reportedly approximately 600 “targeted’htrs who had been
banished to “Rubber Rooms” as part of The Fraudulent Sehe&@ee Exhibit 3 — April 24,
2007 Village Voice Atrticle.

43)As of 2006, Defendants were already on notice on the baseports issued by the Office of
Special Commissioner of Investigations (“SCI”) that tharges against only half of the
“targeted” teachers” were substantiat&ee Exhibit 3 — Village Voice Atrticle.

44)As of 2006, Defendants Bloomberg, Klein and the DOE, irdaatly, maliciously,
recklessly, carelessly and/or negligently, disregattedindings of the SCI and actually
directed and increased The Fraudulent Scheme so thatamdmore teachers were
unlawfully “targeted”.

45)By the end of 2007, there were estimates ranging fromr“@00” to “757” “targeted”

teachers who had been banished to “Rubber Rooms” as Jdré ¢fraudulent SchemeSee



Exhibits 4 & 5 — Oct. 15, 2007 New York Sun Article and Sept. 25, 2007 Newo&br
Article.

46)The primary purpose of The Fraudulent Scheme was/igltacegthe school budgets.

47)The Rubber Room practice is racist and discriminatory.

48)The Rubber Rooms are the modern day equivalent of “inesmhoamps” where the
“targeted” teachers are banished for months, or evas,yleefore they can fight unfounded
“charges.”

49)Many of the “targeted” teachers in the Rubber Rooms adeipahole or part from New
York State or Federally Funded programs.

50)While in the Rubber Rooms, the “targeted” teacherstitdeing paid and the “substitute”
and/or replacement teachers are also being paid.

First Cause of Action — RICO Enterprise

51)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetiforth above in {{ 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

52)The Defendants associated with one another in anpeiseethe activities of which affected,
interstate as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c).

53)The Defendants conspired with one another to viold@&2(c).

54)The Defendants’ conduct (hereinafter “The Fraudulent i@ehend/or Enterprise3 ds

relates specifically to this case of action includedcthespiracy to “target” teachers who

are/were:
a. those who were over a certain minimum age;
b. those had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. those who had been employees for more than a minimumiper of years;
d. those who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber’Rwosedures;
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e. those who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconaioat
f. those who dared to demand or insist upon their due pragbss r
55)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise also includezhDafits conspiring with one
another to, among other things:
a. force the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Ragithout due process and the
chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms
b. coerce, harass, intimidate and terrorize the “targdtsthers so that they will be
fearful for their personal and professional well-beiadlsat they would be “forced”
to retire, resign or accept deals involving ruinous fimetermination.
56)To accomplish The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterpresfendants utilized the US mail
and used electronic means including but not limited to telephfaxes and emails.
57)Manuals, instructions, directions and confidential matethat were part of The Fraudulent
Scheme were exchanged between Defendants Bloomberg, B@i, Superintendents and
Principals during the period from 2000 to the present.
58)Also, Defendants sent notices and other documents tmatpae of The Fraudulent Scheme
and/or Enterprise to Plaintiffs via the US mail.
59)Defendants use of mail and wire services in the furtieeraf The Fraudulent Scheme and/or
Enterprise constitutes and/or satisfied the predicatefaatketeering under federal mail
fraud under 18 U.S.C. § 1341 or federal wire fraud under 18 U§SLB43.
60) As a direct and proximate result of The Fraudulent Sehemd/or Enterprise, Plaintiffs
suffered monetary and other damages.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compény damages per Plaintiff, based on their

individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)

10
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exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Second Cause of Action - Fraud

61)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetiforth above in §{ 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

62) The Defendants associated with one another to defne@uidlaintiffs and other targeted
teachers out of salaries and benefits.

63) The Defendants conspired with one another to defraudatgeted” teachers:

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” guoes:
e. who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconduct, and
f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.
64)The Defendants conspired with one another to, amory ttimgs:
a. force the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Ragithout due process and the
chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms
b. coerce, harass, intimidate and terrorize the “targdtsthers so that they will be
fearful for their personal and professional well-beiodiat they would be “forced”
to retire, resign or accept deals involving ruinous fimetermination.
65) The Defendants’ conspiracy to defraud the targeted teact@uded false allegations
against Plaintiffs and targeted teachers by placing deggsah their files and/or charging
teachers (i) of alleged “misconduct”, (ii) of allegetiging “incompetent”, or (iii) of

allegedly being “insubordinate”.

11



66)At the time Defendants made the aforesaid charges atfaensrgeted teachers, they knew
the charges to be false and untrue.

67)The filing of the aforesaid charges is/was part of thed against the targeted teachers.

68)As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid fr&lalntiffs suffered monetary and other
damages.

69) As a direct and proximate result of aforesaid wrong@ws$, Plaintiffs suffered monetary
and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoum& tletermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Third Cause of Action - Discrimination

70)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrseaforth above in § 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

71)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designed thicaim fact target certain
teachers for discrimination and harassment.

72)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise discriminajaithst teachers:

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” guoes:
e. who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconduct, and

f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.

12



73)As part of their discriminatory practices, among othargs, Defendants:

a. forced the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Rawithout due process and the

chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms

b. coerced, harassed, intimidated and terrorized the “targetadhers so that they

would | be fearful for their personal and professiondl-iveing so that they would be
“forced” to retire, resign or accept deals involving rwisdines or termination.
74)At the time Defendants discriminated against the targeteszhers, they knew their actions
were discriminatory and unlawful.
75) As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid ohsoation, Plaintiffs suffered
monetary and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirghesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Fourth Cause of Action - Harassment

76)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrseiforth above in § 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

77)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designed thicaim fact target certain
teachers for discrimination and harassment.

78)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise harasseetsach

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

13



d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” guoes:

e. who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconduct, and

f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.
79)As part of the harassment, among other things, Defésidan

a. forced the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Rawithout due process and the

chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms

b. coerced, intimidated and terrorized the “targeted” teadwetbat they would | be

fearful for their personal and professional well-beiodiat they would be “forced”
to retire, resign or accept deals involving ruinous fmetermination.
80)At the time Defendants harassed the targeted teatheydnew their actions were
discriminatory and unlawful.
81)As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid lsanast, Plaintiffs suffered monetary and
other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compény damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Fifth Cause of Action
Violation of 5th Amendment Due Process, Equal Protection anBue Process Rights

82)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetiforth above in {{ 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

83) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was desigmatetiere with Plaintiffs and other
target teachers “teachers licenses”, salaries and doessraghts to have the unfounded

allegations and charges expeditiously investigated and resolve
14



84)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designedde tzageted teachers to be faced
with “unsupported” or “false” or “fabricated” charges, wihicaused them to be placed in the
Rubber Rooms, where they waited for months and yearswtithohance to clear their
names and protect their salaries, licenses and projgntg.r
85)While in the Rubber Rooms, teachers were deprived of cheeps and/or the chance to clear
their names and be restored to their classrooms
86)While in the Rubber Rooms, teachers were coercedssetaintimidated and terrorized so
that they would be fearful for their personal and msitenal well-being so that they would
be “forced” to retire, resign or accept deals involvinmous fines or termination.
87)Defendants’ aforesaid acts, violate tffeAnendment to the Constitution by depriving
Plaintiffs of their due process rights and were otherwislawful.
88)As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid viatadf Plaintiffs’ due process rights,
Plaintiffs suffered monetary and other damages.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Sixth Cause of Action
Violation of 14th Amendment —Enacting of Laws that Violate Due Bcess Rights

89)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsefiforth above in 12 to 50 as if the

same were repeated fully and at length herein.

15



90)During the period from 2000 to the present, Defendants impksch@md/or enforced laws,
legislation, statutes and/or administrative procedusdsch were intended to interfere with
Plaintiffs and other target teachers “teachers lic€nsalaries and due process rights.

91)During the period from 2000 to the present, Defendants impksch@md/or enforced laws,
legislation, statutes and/or administrative proceduragiisd to frustrate targeted teachers’
ability to expeditiously defend themselves against theupported” or “false” or
“fabricated” charges, which caused them to be placeakeifiRibber Rooms, where they
waited for months and years without a chance to clear thmes and protect their salaries,
licenses and property rights.

92)The laws, legislation, statutes and/or administratieeguures, implemented and/or enforced
by Defendants, deprived Plaintiffs of due process and/actthece to clear their names and
be restored to their classrooms

93)As a direct and proximate result of the Defendantsemphted and/or enforced laws,
legislation, statutes and/or administrative procedunedgpiation of Plaintiffs’ due process
rights, Plaintiffs suffered monetary and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier

of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

* The laws, legislations, statutes and administragggilations include and are not limited to
those which regulate the “3020 a” hearings, which aremhemeans by which the targeted
teachers can defend themselves, but which are little than “Kangaroo Courts” where the
teachers do not have a chance to be exonerated andltimately accept deals or
administrative rulings that include ruinous fines or teation.

16



Seventh Cause of Action
Violation of 42 U.S.C. 8 2000 e (“Title VIl of the Civil Rights At of 1964")

94)Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsgfiforth above in 12 to 50 as if the
same were repeated fully and at length herein.

95)The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designed tlichim fact target certain
teachers for discrimination and harassment.

96) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise discriminagjamst teachers:

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” guoes:
e. who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconduct, and
f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.
97)As part of their discriminatory practices, among othargs, Defendants:
a. forced the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Rawithout due process and the
chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms
b. coerced, harassed, intimidated and terrorized the “targetadhers so that they
would | be fearful for their personal and professiondl-lveing so that they would be
“forced” to retire, resign or accept deals involving rwisadines or termination.
98)At the time Defendants discriminated against the targeseszhers, they knew their actions
were discriminatory and unlawful.
99) Defendant aforesaid discrimination of the targeted &achiolate 42 U.S.C. § 2000 e
(“Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964").
100) As adirect and proximate result of the aforesaid ohisoation, Plaintiffs suffered

monetary and other damages.
17



101) As adirect and proximate result of aforesaid wrongéus, Plaintiffs suffered monetary
and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Eighth Cause of Action
Violation of 29 U.S.C. 8 621 (“Age Discrimination in Employment &t of 1967")

102) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in { 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

103) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designed tlichim fact target certain
teachers for discrimination and harassment.

104) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise discriminajathst teachers:

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” ¢uoes:
e. those who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconaloat
f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.
105) As part of their discriminatory practices, among othérgs, Defendants:
a. forced the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Rawithout due process and the

chance to clear their names and be restored to thesrooms
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b. coerced, harassed, intimidated and terrorized the “targetadhers so that they
would 4 be fearful for their personal and professional weikyeso that they would be
“forced” to retire, resign or accept deals involving rwiadines or termination.
106) At the time Defendants discriminated against the targegeszhers, they knew their
actions were discriminatory and unlawful.
107) Defendant aforesaid discrimination of the targeted tacholate 29 U.S.C. § 621
(“Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967”).
108) As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid ohsoation, Plaintiffs suffered
monetary and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoum& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Ninth Cause of Action
Violation of 42 U.S.C. 8 1981 (“Civil Rights Act of 1991")

109) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in { 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

110) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise was designed tlichim fact target certain
teachers for discrimination and harassment.

111) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise discriminajeihst teachers:

a. who were over a certain minimum age;
b. who had achieved a high pay and benefits level;
C. who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars;

d. who dared to challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” ¢uoes:
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e. who acted as whistle blowers regarding DOE misconduct, and

f. who dared to demand or insist upon their due process rights.
112) As part of their discriminatory practices, among othérgs, Defendants:

a. forced the targeted teachers to wait in the Rubber Rawithout due process and the

chance to clear their names and be restored to thegrooms

b. coerced, harassed, intimidated and terrorized the “targetadhers so that they

would be fearful for their personal and professional weilkfyeso that they would be
“forced” to retire, resign or accept deals involving rwiadines or termination.
113) At the time Defendants discriminated against the targegeszhers, they knew their
actions were discriminatory and unlawful.
114) Defendant aforesaid discrimination of the targeted &xachiolate 42 U.S.C. § 1981
(“Civil Rights Act of 1991").
115) As adirect and proximate result of aforesaid wrongéws$, Plaintiffs suffered monetary
and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compény damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Tenth Cause of Action - Misuse of Public / Taxpayer Funds

116) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in § 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.
117) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise involves thefusenies that are Federal,

State and Municipal monies that are intended for speaificational purposes.
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118) As a direct and proximate result of The Fraudulent Sehemd/or Enterprise, Defendants
are causing excessive and/or wasteful payments to be oraglduicational purposes
programs.

119) As adirect and proximate result of The Fraudulent Sehemd/or Enterprise,
Defendants are paying “substitute” teachers for sertiegscan, should and would be
performed by the targeted teachers but for the facthbgtare forced to sit in the Rubber
Rooms.

120) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise involves mans®r waste of public funds
allocated for educational purposes, for which Defendawtsidglaccount so that the monies
can be refunded and then used for proper educational purposes.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand accounting by Defendants jointly sglyeand/or in
the alternative for (i) the misuse and/or waste of puhlnds, and (ii) attorneys’ fees, interest
and costs of sulit.

Eleventh Cause of Action - Intentional / Negligent Inflicion of Emotional Distress

121) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in { 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

a. The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise targeted ceztaihers (i) who were
over a certain minimum age; (ii) who had achieved a paghand benefits level; (iii)
who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars; (iv) who dared to
challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” proceduresyjl{@)acted as whistle
blowers regarding DOE misconduct (vi) who dared to demantsist upon their due
process rights, (vii) by forcing the targeted teachersgatib in the Rubber Rooms without
due process and the chance to clear their names ansttedeto their classrooms and

(viii) by coercing, intimidating and terrorizing the “tatgd” teachers so that they would
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be fearful for their personal and professional weikeso that they would retire, resign

or be “forced” to accept deals involving ruinous finesesmination.

122) The Defendants aforesaid acts were intentional,cioak, reckless, careless, negligent,
unlawful and/or improper.

123) As a direct and proximate result of Defendants afodesetss, Plaintiffs suffered
emotional injuries, trauma and other related damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joiriesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compény damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Twelfth Cause of Action - Tortious Interference with Contact and Property Rights

124) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in { 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

a. The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise targetedrcegtaihers (i) who were
over a certain minimum age; (ii) who had achieved a paghand benefits level; (iii)
who had been employees for more than a minimum nuofbgrars; (iv) who dared to
challenge and/or question the “Rubber Room” proceduresyji{@)acted as whistle
blowers regarding DOE misconduct (vi) who dared to demamsist upon their due
process rights, (vii) by forcing the targeted teachersgatib in the Rubber Rooms without
due process and the chance to clear their names ansttedeto their classrooms and
(viii) by coercing, intimidating and terrorizing the “tatgd” teachers so that they would
be fearful for their personal and professional weikeso that they would retire, resign

or be “forced” to accept deals involving ruinous finesesmination.
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125) The Defendants aforesaid acts were intentional,ciab, reckless, careless, negligent,
unlawful and/or improper and were designed to interfere Rlaimtiffs contracts, licenses
and property rights.

126) As adirect and proximate result of Defendants afodesetis, Plaintiffs suffered
monetary and other damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirgiesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compény damages per Plaintiff, based on their
individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegfurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)
exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier
of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Thirteenth Cause of Action - Libel, Slander & Defamation

127) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in { 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

128) The Defendants acts involved false charges being pladed targeted teachers’ files.
129) The false charges include allegations that the targetathérs (i) were allegedly guilty of
“misconduct”, (ii) were allegedly guilty of “substandardork, (iii) were allegedly guilty of

“physically or emotionally abusing students” and/or (i@revallegedly guilty of being
“‘insubordinate”.

130) The false charges placed or caused to be placed by Defemu&intiffs files,
constituted libel, slander and defamation.

131) At the time Defendants made and/or caused the chargesradeeand/or placed in

Plaintiffs files, Defendants knew them to be false.
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132) The Defendants aforesaid libelous, slander and/or dedaynstatements were
intentional, malicious, reckless, careless, negligemtwful and/or improper and were
designed to cause damage to Plaintiffs.

133) As adirect and proximate result of Defendants libelslasyder and/or defamatory
statements, Plaintiffs suffered monetary and other dama

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants joirghesally and/or
in the alternative for damages as follows (i) compémy damages per Plaintiff, based on their

individual circumstances, and in an amount in excefisegurisdictional limit of the Court, (ii)

exemplary, special and/or punitive damages in an amoun& tietermined by the ultimate trier

of fact; and (iii) attorneys’ fees, interest and cadtsuit.

Fourteenth Cause of Action - Injunctive & Equitable Relid

134) Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each of the allegatisrsetforth above in {{ 12 to 50 as if
the same were repeated fully and at length herein.

135) Plaintiffs’ confinement to the Rubber Rooms causes Higimbd suffer immediate and
irreparable harm and damages for which monetary damagemdeguate.

136) Defendants’ placement of false charges in Plaintéfaployment files, causes Plaintiffs
to suffer immediate and irreparable harm and damages fohwionetary damages are
inadequate.

137) The Fraudulent Scheme and/or Enterprise which has ifffacdnfined to the Rubber
Rooms interferes with Plaintiffs’ ability to quickly éafd themselves against the false
charges so that they can clear their names, havalteecharges and all references thereto
removed from their files and be restored to their adlasms and teaching responsibilities.

138) Every day that the Plaintiffs are confined to the Rulsbmyms, they suffer additional

damages for which monetary relief is inadequate.
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139) The ongoing 3020 a Hearings as implemented and/or enforcedfbpdants violates
Plaintiffs’ due process rights.

140) The requirement that Plaintiffs participate in the 302(earings as Defendants are
attempting to enforce them, as presently constituted anchvainé the functional equivalent
of “Kangaroo Courts”, causes Plaintiffs to suffer addiibdamages for which monetary
relief is inadequate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment for the following injunctivedaquitable
relief (i) closing the Rubber Rooms, (ii) directing thHa¢ 8020a Hearings be immediately
enjoined and Plaintiffs not be required to participatdné3020a Hearings as Defendants are
attempting to enforce them, (iii) enjoining Defendants fissaing any findings or judgments
against Plaintiffs resulting from pending or concluded 3020darts (iv) attempting to enforce
any previously issued findings and/or judgments against Pfairegulting from the 3020a
Hearings dating back to 2000; (v) enjoining Defendants from disgjdo any third party the
false charges that were placed in Plaintiffs’ fileg) &ttorneys’ fees, interest and costs of sulit;
and (vii) such other and further relief as is equitable.

Dated: January 21, 2007

New York, NY Edward D. Fagan Esq.

5 Penn Plaza, 23 loor
New York, NY 10001
Tel. (646) 378-2225

Fax (646) 304-6446
Email:ed.fagan@qglobal-litigation-partners.com
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